County of Inyo

“6‘3» Planning Commission
h%e Post Office Drawer L, Independence, CA 93526

(760) 878-0263
(760) 872-2712 FAX
inyoplanning@inyocounty.us

INYO COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION

Howard Lehwald First District

Caitlin (Kate) J. Morley Second District

Todd Vogel Third District (Chair)
Callie Peek Fourth District (Vicechair)
Scott Kemp Fifth District

STAFF

Cathreen Richards Planning Director

Ryan Standridge Associate Planner
Danielle Visuano Associate Planner
Cynthia Draper Assistant Planner
Michael Errante Public Works Director
Nate Greenberg County Administrator
Christian Milovich Assistant County Counsel

This meeting will be held in the Board of Supervisors Room located at 224 N. Edwards Street,
in Independence California, beginning at 10:00 a.m.

Items will be heard in the order listed on the agenda unless the Planning Commission rearranges the order, or the items are continued.
Estimated start times are indicated for each item. The times are approximate, and no item will be discussed before its listed time.

Lunch Break will be given at the Planning Commission’s convenience.

The Planning Commission Chairperson will announce when public testimony can be given for items on the Agenda. The Commission will
consider testimony on both the project and related environmental documents.

The applicant or any interested person may appeal all final decisions of the Planning Commission to the Board of Supervisors. Appeals must
be filed in writing to the Inyo County Board of Supervisors within 15 calendar days per ICC Chapter 15 [California Environmental Quality
Act (CEQA) Procedures] and Chapter 18 (Zoning), and 10 calendar days per ICC Chapter 16 (Subdivisions), of the action by the Planning
Commission. If an appeal is filed, there is a fee of $300.00. Appeals and accompanying fees must be delivered to the Clerk of the Board
Office at County Administrative Center Independence, California. If you challenge in court any finding, determination or decision made
pursuant to a public hearing on a matter contained in this agenda, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised
at the public hearing, or in written correspondence delivered to the Inyo County Planning Commission at, or prior to, the public hearing.

Public Notice: In Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact
the Planning Department at (760) 878-0263 (28 CFR 35.102-3.104 ADA Title II). Notification 72 hours prior to the meeting will enable the County
to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting. Should you because of a disability require appropriate alternative
formatting of this agenda, please notify the Planning Department 2 hours prior to the meeting to enable the County to make the agenda available in
a reasonable alternative format (Government Code Section 54954.2).

January 24, 2024

10:00 A.M.

1.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.




10.

11.

12.

ROLL CALL - Roll Call to be taken by staff.

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD - This is the opportunity for anyone in the audience to
address the Planning Commission on any planning subject that is not scheduled on the
agenda.

NOMINATION & ELECTION OF CHAIRPERSON (Action Item) — The Commission
will accept nominations for Chairperson for 2024 and hold an election.

NOMINATION & ELECTION OF VICE CHAIRPERSON (Action Item) — The
Commission will accept nominations for Vice-Chairperson for 2024 and hold election

RENEWABLE ENERGY PERMIT-2023-01/SBC (Action Item/Public Hearing) — The
applicant, SBC Investment LLC, has applied for a Renewable Energy Permit located on
two 5-acre parcels (APN’s 038-340-20 and 038-340-21) in Trona, California. This permit
would allow the applicant to construct a 2.0 megawatt (MW) commercial scale
photovoltaic solar facility. The project proposes approximately 4,625 single axis tracker
solar panels, encompassing 10-acres of mostly disturbed land. The project is a Mitigated
Negative Declaration of Environmental Impact under the California Environmental
Quality Act (CEQA).

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 2023/BPCSD (Action Item/Public Hearing) — The
applicant, Big Pine Community Service District, has applied for a Conditional Use Permit
located on parcel (APN: 018-090-19), in Big Pine, California. This permit would allow
the applicant to construct a new rapid infiltration basin as an expansion to the current
existing wastewater treatment facility. The project encompasses 5-acres of pre-disturbed
land to be an expansion to the existing 10.3-acres wastewater treatment facility. This
project is a Mitigated Negative Declaration pursuant to CEQA.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES —- Approval of minutes from the October 25, 2023, Planning
Commission Meeting.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES - Approval of minutes from the November 15, 2023, Special
Planning Commission Meeting.

COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS/COMMENTS
PLANNING DIRECTOR’S REPORT

ADJORN



Planning Department

168 North Edwards Street

Post Office Drawer L
Independence, California 93526

Phone: (760) 878-0263
FAX: (760)872-2712

E-Mail: inyoplanning@inyocounty.us

AGENDA ITEM NO.:

PLANNING COMMISSION
METTING DATE:

SUBJECT:
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Action Item No. 6

January 24, 2024

Renewable Energy Permit # 2023-01/SBC

The applicant, SBC Investment LLC, has applied for a Renewable Energy Permit located on two 5-acre
parcels (APN’s 038-340-20 and 038-340-21) in Trona, California. This permit would allow the applicant
to construct a 2.0 megawatt (MW) commercial scale photovoltaic solar facility. The project proposes
approximately 4,625 single axis tracker solar panels, encompassing 10-acres of mostly disturbed land.
The project is a Mitigated Negative Declaration of Environmental Impact under the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).

PROJECT INFORMATION

Supervisory District: 5

Project Applicant: Shawn Barker -SBC Investment, LLC

Site Address: 2500 Bri Mar Lane, Trona, CA 93592

Community: Trona, CA

A.P.N.: 038-340-20 and 038-340-21

General Plan: Residential Estate (RE) and Public Service Facilities (PF)

Zoning: Rural Residential-5.0-acre minimum (RR-5.0) and Public District (P-40)

Size of Parcel: 10 acres.

SURROUNDING LAND USE:

| Location: | Use:

‘Gen. Plan Designation

Residential Estate (RE)

North 'MH on foundation
South ‘Vacant/Trailer

i | connect
East Vacant

| West i _Vaéa?lt

Residential Estate (RE)

Residen_'ci_al_Esieife(—R]f)_ )

B _I;ublic_'gaiégf';c-iﬁties

(PF)

| Zoning

Rural Residential-5.0-acre min (RR-5.0-
MH) | ]
Rural Residential-5.0-acre min (RR-5.0-
MH) —
Rural Residential-5.0-acre min (RR-5.0-
MH)

Public District (P-40)




Staff Recommended Action: Approve the Renewable Energy Permit 2023-01/SBC

Alternatives: 1.) Deny the Renewable Energy Permit

2.) Approve the Renewable Energy Permit with additional
conditions of approval

3.) Continue the public hearing to a future date and provide specific
direction to staff regarding what additional information and analysis

is needed.

Project Planner: Cynthia Draper

STAFF ANALYSIS

Background

In March of 2015, the Board of Supervisors adopted an amendment to the General Plan known

as the Renewable Energy General Plan Amendment (REGPA)'. The REGPA regulates the type,

siting, and size of renewable energy, solar photovoltaic, development projects in the County. The
REGPA defines “utility-scale” facilities generating at least 20 megawatts (MW) and “commercial-scale”
or “community-scale” facilities, generating less than 20 megawatts (MW).

The REGPA designated seven different areas of the County, known as Solar Energy Development
Areas (SEDAs), where solar photovoltaic facilities would be allowed. The REGPA allows for 600

acres of renewable energy development in Trona .

When the County adopted the REGPA in 20135, it certified a Programmatic Environmental Impact
Report (PEIR)?, pursuant to Section 16168 of CEQA guidelines. The PEIR analyzed environmental
impacts of renewable energy solar development throughout the County. This document distinguishes
all SEDAs that are the most environmentally suitable for solar projects.

The Draft PEIR states, “Solar energy projects up to 20MW may be exempt from further CEQA
analysis, unless an event specified in Public Resource Code Section 21166° occurs , in which case
a Supplemental EIR or other CEQA document may be required”. (ES.7)

Overview

The applicant has applied for a Renewable Energy Permit with the Inyo County Planning Department
to construct a 2.0 megawatt (MW) commercial scale photovoltaic solar energy facility on two 5-acre
parcels (APN’s 038-340-20 and 038-340-21), owned by SBC Investment, LLC. The project would

! https://www.inyocounty.us/sites/default/files/2020-04/FinalREGPA33015.pdf
2 https://www.inyocounty.us/sites/default/files/2023-06/Final%20DRAFT%20PEIR.pdf
? https://casetext.com/statute/california-codes/california-public-resources-code/division-13-environmental-quality/chapter-6-

limitations/section-21166-subsequent-or-supplemental-report-required



construct roughly 4,625 single-axis tracker solar panels that will connect to the existing Southern
California Edison (SCE) transmission line passing through the arca. The project will enable income-
qualified residential customers, who may be unable to install solar on their roof, to receive a discount
on their electricity bill through SCE’s Community Renewable Program (see vicinity map).

The project site is mostly disturbed, flat or gently sloped with very little natural vegetation. There is
no habitat, water features or structures. The project area is surrounded by a mobile home on foundation
to the north and vacant land to the south, east and west. Other land uses within 0.5 mile of the Project
Area include storage of equipment, vehicles, scrap yards and storage units.

The proposed application for a Renewable Energy Permit aligns with Inyo County Code Section 21.16-
General Provisions for Renewable Energy Development!, which aims to “support and encourage the
responsible development of its solar and wind resources to generate and transmit clean, renewable
electric energy while protecting the health, safety and welfare of its citizens and its environment,
including its public trust resources”(21.04.030).% The application for this permit has met the
requitements of Inyo County Code Section 21.16.060% and must now be approved by Inyo County
Planning Commission for issuance of the Renewable Energy Permit.

seneral Plan Consistency

The goal of this review is to allow the applicant to develop a renewable solar project in compliance
with the County’s Renewable Energy General Plan Amendment (REGPA), as well as Title 21 of the
Inyo County Code (ICC). The proposed project is consistent with the goals and policies of the Inyo
County REGPA, as adopted by the Inyo County Board of Supervisors in 2015. The finalized Pro-
grammatic Environmental Impact Report (PEIR) of the 2015 REGPA defines commercial scale
renewable energy facilities as having a 20-megawatt (MW) capacity or less. This project has a rated
capacity of 2.0-megawatts (MW). Since the developer is planning a small-scale project, they have
applied for a renewable energy permit, per the requirements of Title 21 of the Inyo County

Code’. Furthermore, County land use policy requires that commercial scale renewable energy projects
be considered within Solar Energy Development Areas (SEDA) overlays. This project is within
the County’s Scuthern Solar Energy Group, in Trona, California (REGPA 2015, figure ESI).

The project aligns with the County’s goals and objectives to utilize photovoltaic panels, the only
type of solar technology currently supported by the REGPA, for renewable energy development
projects. Finally, recent land use implementation measures explicitly state that small scale,
community scale, and commercial scale renewable energy projects will be encouraged and
prioritized over larger, utility scale projects (REGPA, final Errata to final EIR, pg. 3).

Zoning Ordinance Consistency

The applicant’s parcel is zoned Rural Residential-5.0-acre min (RR-5.0-MH) and Public District (P-40).
The Final Errata to the Final Program Environmental Report for the Inyo County Renewable Energy
General Plan Amendment (REGPA), adopted in March 2015 by the Inyo Board of Supervisors, states: “...the
County may consider utility scale and commercial scale renewable energy solar facilities within any zoning
district under Title 18 of the Inyo County Code and pursuant to Inyo County Code Title 21” (REGPA, Errata,
pg. 2). The REGPA created a new land use policy that allows applicants to apply for solar photovoltaic

* https://library.qcode.us/lib/inyo_county_ca/pu b/county_code/item/title_21-chapter 21_16

: https://library.qcode.us/lib/inyo_county_ca/pub/county_code/item/title_21-chapter_21_04-21_04_030
: https://library.qcode.us/lib/inyo_county_ca/pub/county_code/item/title_z1-chapter_21_16—21_16_060
7 https://library.qcode.us/lib/inyo_county_ca/pu b/county_code/item/title 21



renewable energy permits, regardless of zoning designation; however, approval of these projects is still
reserved for the Planning Commission.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

Per Public Resource Code Section 21166, the County is not required to do additional CEQA on this project.
However, staff made the decision to do an initial study anyway to cover all bases.

In November 2023, An Initial Study with a Mitigated Negative Declaration (ISMND) was performed by
staff to consider possible significant impacts to environmental resources for this project. The applicant
provided a biological survey and a cultural report for the project and neither identified special status species
or archaeological cultural resource impacts. The State review period for the ISMND ended on December 29,
2023.

The California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) commented on the ISMND requesting mitigation
measures for the avoidance of nesting birds and for Desert Tortoise pre-construction surveys ( see attached
comment letter). These measures have been added to the Mitigation & Monitoring Program (see attached)
and listed under the Conditions of Approval.

A copy of the ISNMD as well as the biological survey and cultural report can be found at:
hitps://www.invocounty.as/services/planning-epartment/current-projects.

TRIBAL CONSULTATION

In compliance with AB 52 and Public Resource Code Section 21080.3.1(b), tribes identified as being local to
Inyo County, were notified via a certified letter about the project and the opportunity for consultation on this
project. The tribes notified were as follows: the Cabazon Band of Mission Indians, the Torres Martinez Desert
Cahuilla Indians, the Twenty-Nine Palms Band of Mission Indians, the Big Pine Paiute Tribe, the Bishop
Paiute Tribe, the Fort Independence Paiute Tribe, the Lone Pine Paiute Tribe, and the Timbisha Shoshone
Tribe.

Kern Valley Indian Community, commented on the Project stating that the Tribe had concerns regarding
possible impacts to prehistoric cultural resources that could be found throughout the area and recommended
that a culturally affiliated Native American consultant monitor accompany archaeologists conducting phase
one surveys of the project and during all ground disturbing activities related to facility construction and
transmission tie in facilities (see attached). The monitor was present during the phase one survey and the project
is being conditioned that the monitor will be on site during any activities causing ground disturbance.

NOTICING & REVIEW

The application for Renewable energy permit 2023-01/SBC has been reviewed by the following County
Departments: Environmental Health, Public Works, Road Dept., Building & Safety, and the Inyo County
Tax collector. Information regarding the project was also sent to the San Bernardino Fire Department and
China Lake Naval Air Weapons Station.

China Lake Naval Air Weapons Station expressed concermns about the possibility of glare caused by the solar
panels. They pointed out that the area experiences regular military aircraft traffic, raising concerns about
potential midair collisions if glare becomes a problem. The applicant addressed these concerns by providing
staff with anti-glare specifications for the project’s solar panels and the military is satisfied with this
mitigation.

No other comments have been received to date.



Residents within 300 feet of the proposed project were notified that an application for a Renewable Energy
Permit was being submitted, and staff noticed these residents regarding the public hearing date.

The Notice of Availability of the Initial Study was published in the Inyo Register on November 30, 2023.
Notification of the public hearing date for this permit was published in the Inyo Register on January 13, 2024.

RECOMMENDATION

Planning Department staff recommends the approval of Renewable Energy Permit 2023-01/SBC
with the following Findings and Conditions of Approval:

FINDINGS

1.The proposed Renewable Energy Permit has met the provisions of necessary review, pursuant

to the California Environmental Quality Act.

(Evidence: The Inyo County 2015 REGPA, the Initial Study for this project (November 2023), and the
addition of the mitigation and monitoring program recommended for this permit, have eliminated the
potential for adverse environmental impacts that will exceed thresholds of significance, either
individually or cumulatively.]

2. The proposed Renewable Energy Permit is consistent with the Inyo County General Plan Land Use
Designation of Residential Estate (RE)/ SEDA, as adopted by Inyo County.

[Evidence: In 2015, Inyo County updated its General Plan to include policies for solar energy
development within the County. New goals, policies, implementation measures, and actual sites,
were identified in locations referred to in the REGPA as SEDAs. The current project falls within
Inyo County’s southern SEDA; and therefore, has consistency with the General Plan.]

3. The proposed Renewable Energy Permit is consistent with the Inyo County Zoning Ordinance.
[Evidence: Utility scale and commercial scale renewable energy solar facilities are allowed within
any zoning district, under Title 18 of the Inyo County Code, and pursuant to Inyo County Code
Title21 if the facilities are proposed within a SEDA. The new land use policy created by the REGPA
means that applications will be considered regardless of zoning designation, with approval of the
permit decided by the Planning Commission, as long as they are located in a SEDA.]

4. The proposed Renewable Energy Permit is necessary or desirable.

[Evidence: In 2015, the Inyo County Board of Supervisors decided it was necessary to adopt new land
use policies that were consistent with and met the broader goals and visions for the County as
expressed in the General Plan. These amended land use policies regulate and direct the type, siting,
and size of potential future renewable energy development within the County. Given that the proposed
project is within the southern SEDA, the project is consistent with what the County has deemed
necessary and desirable (REGPA, ES-2, 2015).]

5. The proposed Renewable Energy Permit is properly related to other uses and transportation

and service facilities in the vicinity.

[Evidence: The proposed Renewable Energy Permit is properly related to transportation and service
facilities and will not adversely affect these facilities. The project is located in an area where it can
connect to Southern California Edison’s electrical transmission lines. This project is secluded enough
to avoid burdens to Inyo County maintained roads, in this case Trona Wildrose Road. Additionally, it
is over a mile away from the Trona airport.]



6. The proposed Renewable Energy Permit would not under all the circumstances of this case,
adversely affect the health or safety of persons living or working in the vicinity or be materially
detrimental to public welfare.

[Evidence: The proposed Renewable Energy Permit does not adversely affect public health or safety of
persons living in the vicinity. The Inyo County Environmental Health Department evaluated the
application for sewer, septic, and water issues and found no problems with the application. The
proposed solar facility will not generate noise, traffic, or hazards in the very rural sparsely populated
area surrounding it. ]

7. Operating requirements necessitate the proposed Renewable Energy Permit for the site.
[Evidence: Use of the applicant’s property for a photovoltaic power plant or solar energy system
requires a Renewable Energy Permit, as per Chapter 21.08 of the Inyo County Code.]

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

1. Hold Harmless

The owner/developer shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless Inyo County agents, officers, and
employees from any claim, action or proceeding against the County or its agents, officers, or employees
to attack, set aside, void, or annul an approval of the county, its advisory agencies, its appeals board, or
legislative body concerning Renewable Energy Permit No. 2023-01/ SBC. The County reserves the
right to prepare its own defense.

2. Compliance with County Code

The owner/developer shall conform to all applicable provisions of the Inyo County General Plan,
Zoning Code and County and State regulations, including the California Building and Health and
Safety Codes. Failure to comply may result in the revocation of REP 2023-01/SBC. If the use
provided by this REP is not established within one year of approval date it will become void.

3. Decommissioning Plan and Financial Assurance

-As per section 21.20.030 of ICC, the owner/developer shall submit a staff approved decommissioning
plan prior to the issuance of grading or building permits.

-As per section 21.20.040 of ICC, the owner/developer shall have secured financial

assurance/surety bond prior to the issuance of grading or building permits.

-The owner/developer shall submit an updated decommissioning plan and updated financial
assurance/surety bond to the Inyo County Planning Department every 5 years

4. Native American consultant monitor

The owner/developer shall have a culturally affiliated Native American consultant, from Kemn Valley
Indian Community, be present during all ground disturbing activities related to facility construction and
transmission tie in facilities. Failure to do so may result in the revocation of the Renewable Energy
Permit.

5. Air Quality
The owner/developer shall implement and follow the Mitigation and Monitoring Program regarding
fugitive dust from the project site. (see attached) Failure to do so may result in the revocation of the

Renewable Energy Permit.



6. Noise
The owner/developer shall implement and follow the Mitigation and Monitoring Program regarding
construction noise (see attached). Failure to do so may result in the revocation of the Renewable Energy

Permit.

7. Avoidance of Nesting Birds
The owner/developer shall implement and follow the Mitigation and Monitoring Program regarding avoidance
of nesting birds (see attached). Failure to do so may result in the revocation of the Renewable Energy Permit

8. Desert Tortoise Surveys
The owner/developer shall implement and follow the Mitigation and Monitoring Program regarding Desert
Tortoise Surveys (see attached). Failure to do so may result in the revocation of the Renewable Energy Permit.

9. Sensitive Plants
The ownet/developer shall obtain permits from the sheriff's office or the Agricultural Commissioner for the
removal of desert holly and beavertail cactus from the site prior to the issuance of grading or building permits.

10. Fish and Game Code section 1602
The owner/developer shall contact CDFW regarding compliance with Fish and Game Code section 1602 prior

to grading/construction.

ATTACHMENTS:

Vicinity map

Site Plan

Site pictures

Mitigation and Monitoring Program

Kem Valley Indian Community project comment letter
CDFW ISMND comment letter



VICINITY MAP
REP 2023-01/SBC
Assessor Parcel Numbers 038-340-20 & 038-340-21




W=t
b

S T @ NV1d 3LIS TvoId.L0313

IVIMLOITTI
Tz
et
ST
=
QY UVA-INE | [
R /S Fiesou | ,un-mmhmmﬂzvmnqmmhmn3:32!92:2&55&“:«"
i / / _ :
4 /3 |
ANV — e e o
X ns__ ) .a._%L Jm _
— — = H, 0al: s SRoRS HH MHMAMHAH P EF R AR H AR EH A
| ” %
4 o ! \
| L]
| } Py 1 v
_quuuu = & A G o ‘-uunvlauuuu £ & L S E o x o o X Eom o Eom o oo o ooeoom |
i i
| | _
! Spupugays 2 Sgugs hu11u....-||..||.._lluuriuu..l-.uc-«r_quqr..l.. .
|
O —
U _ 0t |
| kD oL ol Big oIS ws ne I
o k-4 L4 L2 ] _.n“ \
ek R 1] 4 | Uty LU
07 OVE-BEQ Ndv PZEOANI 3 | PZIOANI L .t oG \ PETOAN PZ-LOAN} -.ﬂ_-.=n_.t¢ w
[ - =
_ B .\ Nt P ——— Ngnoimae  oma -
| FIVRLIE R
| INCLALIILA OvEH ZEAL AHALLYR IMNUNY
MO TASCTIG iy 3 FIERECe 40 NOUYIDT
RVE = ryp— NOILOINNCOMIINI 48 LN Be 50n
295T8 YD 'YNIRY, — HISON03Y
QUOH MW 0052 H3ISO10TM ¥INOLSND - 3 F1De TA0LEAT )
- ¥ISOT0IH HINOLEND = € 310 . .
ANINANDE SHOLYIINITACD HILL
¥ OV HH AINSHGNDE A WINOLEAD
MYI08 288
8088 Q14D
TR
HINH YA NMVYHS [y
IS DEE-5M11XD02833 540 Tad
ARIHD 29
AE=ilve
L(z2) | 12 9 ot AnumlE
BRY AU SNRLE
059 b ALD 3ITNACA
52 ONfELS f 3INCON = T
o5 3G i SLlvm rciyuig
EEFA e
s AT ROTNT TESON AN LT D T T e e e _
S 39D 43320 Wroww: b SRR L v
NGTISMVAS | FI-Zo {9,8) Ingow e
S poRe b
SdWVAd s S eemere |
T3N0Z SSIZS BT 12y M) BMOd RN e |
P~ 45d 07 Qv MONS 0E-EN/OC-11NSLZHIS 42 1300 &I-.H-.;tﬂ_. et _
/ L L9 IS8 942 JISV Hell 0t LNGHD D . . orurgia2 i
& ...1\ 4 2awnsoexs [EREIN R In.!-a- i
LY 4 -0 FTONY HLAZY H .l...l.. 2y
Yot 2518 NCLLYLOH /LI 7h b SLLVHAVRC R
e S AN ] AT Y OY X TRY RS n e oL VA S AR T A
M=oy LUS ZAZH AOWALYRNG Sdal 207 S wairoe B ED Wt 1
2T V2 Nl A N 2y | |
"LITULS GNESTN JFTOOST9; Aveay 23 £457 (00 MK 325 AILSAS o
IM!M(& zg<Iw DO 371 123rod r —
oL P PALSAS INOSYL ANBWLINDS




1S3M ONIMOOT 02-01€-8€0 130UV ¥IANYOD IS




1S3IM ONIXOOT 12-0vE-8€0 TIDUVC ¥INYOD 3N




MITIGATION & MONITORING PROGRAM
Renewable Energy Permit 2023-01/ SBC

INTRODUCTION

This Mitigation and Monitoring Program (MMP) has been developed for Renewable Energy
Permit/2023-01/SBC, pursuant to Inyo County Code ICC 15.44. The MMP describes changes to
the project or conditions of approval that mitigate or avoid the project’s potential significant
effects on the environment. Based on the Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration of
Environmental Impact, and the administrative record, as a whole, there is no substantial evidence
that the Project may have a significant impact on the environment. The IS/MND identifies
potential significant environmental impacts of the Project, in accordance with CEQA, and
incorporates mitigation measures to reduce impacts to a level below significant.

Mitigaﬁon Measure

AIR QUALITY

[ITa) During construction the
following  measures to
control fugitive dust and
emissions of particles shall
be employed:

1) Provision of equipment
and staffing for watering of
all exposed or disturbed soil
surfaces or use of an
appropriate dust palliative or
suppressant.

2) Watering or treating of
all disturbed but inactive
portions of the site with
appropriate dust
suppressant

3) Covering of materials
transported by truck to
control dust.

Morﬁt_ofing Responsi'ﬁi_lit_\;

Schedule

| -On-site contractor(s)

-Great Basin Unified Air
Pollution Control District
(GBUAPCD)

-Public Works (Building and
Safety)

-On-site contractors will be
responsible for dust control
implementation during
construction.

-Applicant will be responsible
for dust control
implementation during the
life of the project.

-The GBUAPCD will be
responsible for air quality
monitoring.

-Inyo County Public Works
(Building and Safety) will be
responsible for construction
inspections.

-Inyo County Planning
Department staff will be
responsible for yearly
inspections.




to active work areas to

4) Daily clean-up of mud and
dirt carried onto paved streets
from the site.

5) Suspension of dust-
producing activities during
periods of sustained high
winds (gusts exceeding 25
mph) when dust control
measures are unable to avoid
visible dust plumes

BIOLOGICAL
RESOURCES

1V a) Avoidance of nesting

birds:

Regardless of the time of
year, a nesting bird survey
shall be conducted by a
qualified avian biologist no
more than three days prior to
vegetation clearing or ground
disturbing activities and shall
include any potential habitat
(including shrubs, the ground
or nearby structures)).
Preconstruction surveys shall
focus on both direct and
indirect evidence of nesting,
including nest locations and
nesting behavior. Should
nesting birds be found, an
exclusionary buffer
(depending on the species)
shall be established by the
qualified biologist.

The buffer shall be clearly
marked in the field by
construction personnel under
the guidance of a qualified
biologist. A qualified
biologist will continue to
monitor active nests adjacent

Project Proponent

Prior to commencing
vegetation clearing or
ground-disturbing activities




determine whether
exclusionary buffers are
sufficient to prevent stress or
other negative behavioral
changes to nesting bird
behavior. If the qualified
biologist determines that
construction activities pose a
disturbance to nesting,
construction shall be stopped
in the area of the nest and no
disturbance buffer shall be
expanded. No construction
activities shall be allowed
within the exclusionary buffer
until the qualified biologist
determines that the young
have fledged, or the nest is no
longer active.

Desert Tortoise:

Prior to ground disturbance or
vegetation clearing within the
Project site, a qualified
biologist shall conduct a
protocol level presence or
absence of survey within the
Project area and a 500-foot
buffer of suitable habitat, no
more than 48 hours prior to
ground disturbing activities,
in accordance with the most
recent Fish and Wildlife
(USFWS) desert tortoise
survey methodology. If
surveys confirm presence of
desert tortoise and complete
avoidance cannot be
achieved, the Applicant shall
not undertake Project
activities and Project
activities shall be postposed
unit the appropriate
authorization is obtained.




NOISE

XIII a) Noise generated by
onsite construction activities:
Contractor(s) shall implement
The MM NOI-2 incorporated
best management practices
(BMPs) from REAT's Best
Management Practices within
500 feet of a residence or
other sensitive receptor.

See the following:

1) Whenever feasible,
electrical power will be used
to run air compressors and
similar power tools.

2) Equipment staging areas
will be located as far as
feasible from occupied
residences and schools.

3) All construction
equipment, fixed or mobile,
shall be equipped with
properly operating and
maintained mufflers.

4) Stationary equipment shall
be placed such that emitted
noise is directed away from
sensitive noise receptors.

5) Stockpiling and vehicle
staging areas shall be located
as far as practical from
occupied dwellings.

-Inyo County Public Works
Building and Safety)

-Sherift’s Department

-The Inyo County Public
Works (Building and Safety)
Department will verify that
noise related contract
specifications are in place
before issuing demolition,
grading, or building permits.

-The Public Works (Building
and Safety) and Sherift’s
Departments will respond to
any noise complaints received
and adjust measures as

appropriate
|




Incorporate REAT’s Best
Management Practices for
desert renewable energy
projects. See the following
list of 10 BMPs:

1) Ensure noisy construction
activities (including truck and
rail deliveries, pile driving
and blasting) are limited to
the least noise-sensitive times
of day (i.e., weekdays only 45
between 7 a.m. and 7 p.m.)
for projects near residential or
recreational areas.

2) Consider use of noise
barriers such as berms and
vegetation to limit ambient
noise at plant property lines,
especially where sensitive
noise receptors may be
present.

3) Ensure all project
equipment has sound-control
devices no less effective than
those provided on the original
equipment. All construction
equipment used should be
adequately muffled and
maintained. Consider use of
battery powered forklifts and
other facility vehicles

4) Ensure all stationary
construction equipment (i.e.,
compressors and generators)
is located as far as

practicable from nearby

rg§i(_1_ences.




5) If blasting or other noisy
activities are required during
the construction period,
notify nearby residents and
the permitting agencies 24
hours in advance.

6) Properly maintain
mufflers, brakes and all loose
items on construction and
operation related vehicles to
minimize noise and ensure
safe operations. Keep truck
operations to the quietest
operating speeds. Advise
about downshifting and
vehicle operations in
residential communities to
keep truck noise to a
minimum.

7) Use noise controls on
standard construction
equipment, shield impact
tools. Consider use of
flashing lights instead of
audible back-up alarms on
mobile equipment.

8) Install mufflers on air
coolers and exhaust stacks on
all diesel and gas-driven
engines. Equip all emergency
pressure relief valves and
steam blow-down lines with
silencers to limit noise levels.

9) Contain facilities within
buildings or other types of
effective noise enclosures.

10) Employ engineering
controls, including sound-
insulated equipment and
control rooms, to reduce
noise.




ﬁ%@ﬂsy P.0. Box 1010, Lake Isabella, CA 93240
'S “ R

00N comMumTy m—— . ,
35009 Historic Preservation Office
G P.O. Box 401, Weldon, CA 93283

May 21, 2023
RE: Proposed Solar Project, Parcel Number 038-340-20;21

Cathleen Richards, Planning Director
P.O. Drawer L
Independence, CA 93526

Ms. Richards,

This is the letter you requested regarding the proposed 5 acre Solar Facility north of
Trona CA. The tribe has concerns regarding possible impacts to prehistoric cultural
resources that are to be found throughout the area. The tribe recommends culturally
affiliated Native American consultants, monitors accompany archaeologists
conducting Phase one surveys of the project and during all ground disturbing activates
related to facility construction and transmission tie in facilities.

Sincerely,

cgglfert &ﬂno‘on

Robert Robinson
Kern Valley Indian Community
Chairman and Tribal Historic Preservation Officer



DocuSign Envelope ID: 458DCD11-F12C-4F70-B000-0F4DD69D35F7

-

; l-'- jj Stete of California — Nalural Resources Agency GAVIN NEWSOM, Governor g{‘@ 2%

¢ L.;g%’?g. DEPARTMENT OF FISH AND WILDLIFE CHARLTON H. BONHAM, Director [+ (i1
WG  Inland Deserts Region

y 3602 Inland Empire Boulevard, Suite C-220
Ontario, CA 91764
www.wildlife.ca.gov

December 20, 2023
Sent via email

Cynthia Draper

Assistant Planner

Inyo County Planning Department
P.O. Drawer L

Independence, CA 93526
cdraper@inyocounty.us

Subject: Mitigated Negative Declaration
Renewable Energy Permit 2023-01/SBC
State Clearinghouse No. 2023110666

Dear Ms. Draper

The California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) received a Mitigated Negative
Declaration (MND) from the Inyo County Planning Department for the Renewable Energy
Permit 2023-01/SBC (Project) pursuant the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)
and CEQA Guidelines.!

Thank you for the opportunity to provide comments and recommendations regarding those
activities involved in the Project that may affect California fish and wildlife. Likewise, we
appreciate the opportunity to provide comments regarding those aspects of the Project that
CDFW, by law, may be required to carry out or approve through the exercise of its own
regulatory authority under the Fish and Game Code.

CDFW ROLE

CDFW is California’s Trustee Agency for fish and wildlife resources and holds those
resources in trust by statute for all the people of the state. (Fish & G. Code, §§ 711.7,
subd. (a) & 1802; Pub. Resources Code, § 21070; CEQA Guidelines § 15386, subd. (a))
CDFW, in its trustee capacity, has jurisdiction over the conservation, protection, and
management of fish, wildlife, native plants, and habitat necessary for biologically
sustainable populations of those species. (/d., § 1802.) Similarly, for purposes of CEQA,
CDFW is charged by law to provide, as available, biological expertise during public agency
environmental review efforts, focusing specifically on projects and related activities that
have the potential to adversely affect fish and wildlife resources.

CDFW is also submitting comments as a Responsible Agency under CEQA (Pub.
Resources Code, § 21069; CEQA Guidelines, § 15381). CDFW expects that it may need
to exercise regulatory authority as provided by the Fish and Game Code. As proposed, for

1 CEQA is codified in the California Public Resources Code in section 21000 et seq. The "CEQA Guidelines”
are found in Title 14 of the California Code of Regulations, commencing with section 15000.



DocuSign Envelope ID; 458DCD11-F12C-4F 70-B000-0F4DD69D35F 7

Cynthia Draper, Assistant Planner
Inyo County Planning Department
December 20, 2023

Page 2

example, the Project may be subject to CDFW's lake and streambed alteration regulatory
authority. (Fish & G. Code, § 1600 et seq.) Likewise, to the extent implementation of the
Project as proposed may result in “take” as defined by State law of any species protected
under the California Endangered Species Act (CESA) (Fish & G. Code, § 2050 et seq.),
the Project proponent may seek related take authorization as provided by the Fish and
Game Code.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION SUMMARY

Proponent: Larry Trowsdale

Objective: The applicant is applying for a Renewable Energy Permit to construct a 2.0
megawatt (MW) photovoltaic (PV) solar facility using approximately 4,625 single-axis
tracker solar panels.

Location: The Project is located on two five-acre parcels (Assessor’s Parcel Numbers
038-340-20 and 038-340-21) in Inyo County, north of the unincorporated town of Trona,
California.

Timeframe: The MND does not provide a proposed timeframe for construction and/or
operational life of the Project.

COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

CDFW offers the comments and recommendations below to assist Inyo County in
adequately identifying and/or mitigating the Project's significant, or potentially significant,
direct and indirect impacts on fish and wildlife (biological) resources. Editorial comments or
other suggestions may also be included to improve the document.

Project Description and Related Impact Shortcoming
Comment #1: Request for more detailed Project Description
Issue: The MND provides very little information regarding the Project description.

Evidence impact would be significant: Compliance with CEQA is predicated on a
complete and accurate description of the Project, including reasonably foreseeable future
phases of the proposed Project. Without a complete and accurate Project description, the
MND likely provides an incomplete assessment of Project-related environmental impacts
and CDFW is unable to provide a meaningful analysis of potential Project impacts to
biological resources.

CDFW Recommendations: CDFW recommends that a revised MND provide additional
details, such as a list of Project components (in addition to the solar array, access/internal
roads, fencing, lighting, etc.); timeframe for construction, operations and maintenance, and



DocuSign Envelope ID: 458DCD11-F12C-4F 70-B000-0F4DD69D35F7

Cynthia Draper, Assistant Planner
Inyo County Planning Department
December 20, 2023

Page 3

decommissioning; and how the Project construction will occur. It should also include a map
with current imagery of the Project area.

Environmental Setting and Related Impact Shortcoming
Comment #2: Assessment of Biological Resources

Issue: CDFW is concerned that the MND does not adequately identify the Project’s
significant or potentially significant impacts to biological resources.

Specific Impact: The MND states that according to the Biological Evaluation (BE), the
Project will not adversely impact sensitive or special status native species, and no CDFW
designated special status species were found in the Project area. CDFW appreciates that
qualified biologists conducted protocol surveys in 2023 for special status species with the
potential to occur within the Project area. However, although results of surveys did not
detect the presence of any special status species and the Project area has been heavily
impacted by human disturbance, that doesn't entirely preclude the possibility that special
status species could use the site. The BE notes that “beyond the corridor of impacted
properties along Trona Wildrose Road is extensive open space that extends to nearby
protected lands throughout the Searles Valley and surrounding mountain ranges. These
protected lands represent good to excellent habitat for native species” (BE page 3).

CDFW Recommendations: Please note that CDFW generally considers surveys for
wildlife to be valid for one year and would recommend that surveys be repeated if the
Project is delayed beyond that timeframe. Please also note that the BE available on the
Inyo County website is missing Attachment 1-Mohave Ground Squirrel Report for the SBC
Solar Project and CDFW requests that this report is made publicly available prior to
adopting the MND. Further recommendations for resource-specific mitigation measures
are detailed in the sections below.

Mitigation Measure and Related Impact Shortcomings
Comment #3: Impacts to Nesting Birds
Issue: The MND states that the Project will not result in impacts to nesting birds.

Specific impact: While the BE indicates that no nesting birds were located during
biological surveys conducted during peak breeding season, it doesn't rule out the
possibility that conditions could change such that Project activities could result in the
disturbance of nesting birds.

Evidence impact would be significant: It is the Applicant's responsibility to comply with
all applicable laws related to nesting birds and birds of prey. Migratory non-game bird
species are protected by international treaty under the federal Migratory Bird Treaty Act
(MBTA) of 1918, as amended (16 U.S.C. 703 et. seq.). In addition, sections 3503, 3503.5,
and 3513 of the Fish and Game Code also afford protective measures as follows: Section



DocuSign Envelope 1D: 458DCD11-F12C-4F70-8000-0F4DD69DASF7

Cynthia Draper, Assistant Planner
Inyo County Planning Department
December 20, 2023

Page 4

3503 states that it is unlawful to take, possess, or needlessly destroy the nest or eggs of
any bird, except as otherwise provided by Fish and Game Code or any regulation made
pursuant thereto; Section 3503.5 states that it is unlawful to take, possess, or destroy any
birds in the orders Falconiformes or Strigiformes (birds-of-prey) or to take, possess, or
destroy the nest or eggs of any such bird except as otherwise provided by Fish and Game
Code or any regulation adopted pursuant thereto; and Section 3513 states that it is
unlawful to take or possess any migratory nongame bird as designated in the MBTA or any
part of such migratory nongame bird except as provided by rules and regulations adopted
by the Secretary of the Interior under provisions of the MBTA.

Recommended Potentially Feasible Mitigation Measure:

CDFW recommends that a qualified biologist survey the Project area, not only for nesting
birds, but also all bird activity to observe behavior that could be related to nest building,
incubation, feeding of young and/or possible behavior that could indicate agitation and/or
nest abandonment caused by Project activities. CDFW recommends the following
mitigation measure to avoid take of nesting birds:

MM BIO-1 Avoidance of Nesting Birds Regardless of the time of year, a nesting bird
survey shall be conducted by a qualified avian biologist no more than three days
prior to vegetation clearing or ground disturbing activities and shall include any
potential habitat (including shrubs, the ground or nearby structures).
Preconstruction surveys shall focus on both direct and indirect evidence of nesting,
including nest locations and nesting behavior. Should nesting birds be found, an
exclusionary buffer (depending upon the species) shall be established by the
qualified biologist. The buffer shall be clearly marked in the field by construction
personnel under guidance of the qualified biologist. A qualified biologist will
continue to monitor active nests adjacent to active work areas to determine whether
exclusionary buffers are sufficient to prevent stress or other negative behavioral
changes to nesting birds. Exclusionary buffers may be adjusted at any time by a
qualified biologist based on project activities and nesting bird behavior. If the
qualified biologist determines that construction activities pose a disturbance to
nesting, construction work shall be stopped in the area of the nest and the no
disturbance buffer shall be expanded. No construction activities shall be allowed
within the exclusionary buffer until the qualified biologist determines that the young
have fledged, or the nest is no longer active.

Comment #4: California Endangered Species Act

Issue: CDFW is responsible for ensuring appropriate conservation of fish and wildlife
resources including threatened, endangered, and/or candidate plant and animal species,
pursuant to CESA. A CESA incidental take permit (ITP) is issued to conserve, protect,
enhance, and restore State-listed CESA species and their habitats. CDEW recommends
that a CESA ITP be obtained if the Project has the potential to result in “take” (California
Fish and Game Code Section 86 defines “take” as "hunt, pursue, catch, capture, or kill, or
attempt to hunt, pursue, catch, capture, or kill") of CESA-listed species. Take of any



DocuSign Envelope ID: 458DCD11-F12C-4F70-B000-0F4DD69D35F7

Cynthia Draper, Assistant Planner
Inyo County Planning Department
December 20, 2023

Page 5

CESA-listed species is prohibited except as authorized by state law (Fish and G. Code, §§
2080 and 2085).

Specific impact: CESA-listed species that have potential to occur in the Project’s vicinity
include desert tortoise (Gopherus agassizii; threatened, candidate for endangered) and
Mohave ground squirrel (Xerospermophilus mohavensis; threatened). Although no
presence or sign of these species was detected during the surveys conducted, the BE
notes that the Project area is within the known range of both, appropriate habitat occurs in
the Project area, and observations have recently been recorded in the greater Searles
Valley. In addition, the BE states that while the Project properties themselves do not
present quality habitat for desert tortoise, it is possible that tortoises could travel onto the
Project site from the surrounding landscape during routine travel and dispersal
movements. To avoid unauthorized take of desert tortoise, CDOFW recommends that the
MND include the following mitigation measure:

Recommended potentially feasible mitigation measure:

Mitigation Measure BIO-2 Desert Tortoise Surveys Prior to ground disturbance or
vegetation clearing within the Project site, a CDFW-approved biologist shall conduct
a protocol level presence or absence survey within the Project area and a 500-foot
buffer of suitable habitat, no more than 48 heurs prior to Project activities and after
any pause in Project activities lasting 30 days or more, in accordance with the most
recent U.S. Fish and Wildlife (USFWS) desert tortoise survey methodology. The
survey shall use perpendicular survey routes and 100-percent visual coverage for
desert tortoise and their sign. Preconstruction surveys cannot be combined with
other surveys conducted for other species while using the same personnel. Results
of the survey shall be submitted to CDFW prior to the start of Project activities. If
surveys confirm presence or desert tortoise is observed during Operation and
Maintenance and complete avoidance cannot be achieved, the Applicant shall not
undertake Project activities and Project activities shall be postponed until the
appropriate authorization (i.e., a California Endangered Species Act incidental take
permit under the Fish and Game Code section 2081) is obtained. If an ITP is
obtained, the impact to desert tortoise shall be mitigated at a minimum of 1:1 ratio.

Comment #5: Lake and Streambed Alteration Program

Issue: The MND does not address and evaluate Project impacts to Fish and Game Code
section 1600 resources in the form of dry desert washes within the Project area.

Specific impact: The BE briefly mentions that there are no USGS drainages present on
site and no above-ground water resources (seeps, springs, ponds, or streams) present. It
does appear that the eastern parcel is denuded, but it is difficult for CDFW to discern,
based on the limited information provided, whether any of what appears from aerial
imagery of the western parcel to be potential dry desert wash features would be impacted
by the Project.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 458DCD11-F12C-4F70-B000-0F4DD69D35F 7

Cynthia Draper, Assistant Planner
Inyo County Planning Department
December 20, 2023

Page 6

Evidence impact would be significant: Fish and Game Code section 1602 requires an
entity to notify CDFW prior to commencing any activity that may do one or more of the
following: Substantially divert or obstruct the natural flow of any river, stream or lake;
Substantially change or use any material from the bed, channel or bank of any river,
stream, or lake; or Deposit debris, waste or other materials that could pass into any river,
stream or lake. Please note that "any river, stream or lake" includes those that are episodic
(i-e., those that are dry for periods of time) as well as those that are perennial (i.e., those
that flow year-round). This includes ephemeral streams, desert washes, and watercourses
with a subsurface flow. It may also apply to work undertaken within the flood plain of a
body of water. Upon receipt of a complete notification, CDFW determines if the proposed
Project activities may substantially adversely affect existing fish and wildlife resources and
whether a Lake and Streambed Alteration (LSA) Agreement is required. An LSA
Agreement includes measures necessary to protect existing fish and wildlife resources.
CDFW may suggest ways to modify your Project that would eliminate or reduce harmful
impacts to fish and wildlife resources.

CDFW's issuance of an LSA Agreement is a “project” subject to CEQA (see Pub.
Resources Code § 21065). To facilitate issuance of an LSA Agreement, if necessary, the
MND should fully identify the potential impacts to the lake, stream, or riparian resources,
and provide adequate avoidance, mitigation, and monitoring and reporting commitments.
Early consultation with CDFW is recommended, since modification of the proposed Project
may be required to avoid or reduce impacts to fish and wildlife resources. To obtain a Lake
or Streambed Alteration notification package, please go to
https://www.wildlife.ca.gov/Conservation/LSA/Forms.

CDFW Recommendation: Prior to Project activities and issuance of any grading permit,
the Applicant should submit a notification under section 1602 of the Fish and Game Code.
If it is determined that a notification is not required for the Project, the Applicant shall
receive a refund of fees. If notification is required CDFW will determine if an executed
Streambed Alteration Agreement is needed to authorize impacts to Fish and Game Code
section 1602 resources associated with the Project.

ENVIRONMENTAL DATA

CEQA requires that information developed in environmental impact reports and negative
declarations be incorporated into a database which may be used to make subsequent or
supplemental environmental determinations. (Pub. Resources Code, § 21003, subd. (e).)
Accordingly, please report any special status species and natural communities detected
during Project surveys to the California Natural Diversity Database (CNDDB). The CNNDB
field survey form can be filled out and submitted online at the following link:
hitps://wildlife.ca.gov/Data/CNDDB/Submitting-Data. The types of information reported to
CNDDB can be found at the following link: https://www.wildlife.ca.gov/Data/CNDDB/Plants-
and-Animals.

ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENT FILING FEES



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4568DCD11-F12C-4F70-B000-0F4DD6ID3SF7

Cynthia Draper, Assistant Planner
Inyo County Planning Department
December 20, 2023

Page 7

The Project, as proposed, would have an impact on fish and/or wildlife, and assessment of
environmental document filing fees is necessary. Fees are payable upon filing of the
Notice of Determination by the Lead Agency and serve to help defray the cost of
environmental review by CDFW. Payment of the environmental document filing fee is
required in order for the underlying project approval to be operative, vested, and final. (Cal.
Code Regs, tit. 14, § 753.5; Fish & G. Code, § 711.4; Pub. Resources Code, § 21089.)

CONCLUSION

CDFW appreciates the opportunity to comment on the MND to assist Inyo County in
identifying and mitigating Project impacts on biological resources.

Questions regarding this letter or further coordination should be directed to Rose Banks,
Senior Environmental Scientist (Specialist) at (760) 218-0022 or
Rose.Banks@uwildlife.ca.gov.

Sincerely,
—DacuSighed by
L{i&m Hlswertl
isaeRHsworth
Environmental Program Manager

cc:  Office of Planning and Research, State Clearinghouse, Sacramento
State.Clearinghouse@opr.ca.gov

Attachment 1: Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP) for CDFW-Proposed
Mitigation Measures .



DocuSign Envelope ID: 458DCD11-F12C-4F70-B000-0F4DD69D35F7

Cynthia Draper, Assistant Planner
Inyo County Planning Department
December 20, 2023

Page 8

Attachment 1: Draft Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program

(MMRP)

CDFW provides the following language to be incorporated into the MMRP for the Project.

Biological Resources (BIO)

Mitigation Measure (MM) Description

Implementation
Schedule

Responsible
Party

MM BIO-1 Avoidance of Nesting Birds: Regardless of the time of
year, a nesting bird survey shall be conducted by a qualified avian
biologist no more than three days prior to vegetation clearing or
ground disturbing activities and shall include any potential habitat
(including shrubs, the ground or nearby structures).
Preconstruction surveys shall focus on both direct and indirect
evidence of nesting, including nest locations and nesting
behavior. Should nesting birds be found, an exclusionary buffer
(depending upon the species) shall be established by the qualified
biologist. The buffer shall be clearly marked in the field by
construction personnel under guidance of the qualified biologist.
A qualified biologist will continue to monitor active nests adjacent
to active work areas to determine whether exclusionary buffers
are sufficient to prevent stress or other negative behavioral
changes to nesting birds. Exclusionary buffers may be adjusted at
any time by a qualified biologist based on project activities and
nesting bird behavior. If the qualified biologist determines that
construction activities pose a disturbance to nesting, construction
work shall be stopped in the area of the nest and the no
disturbance buffer shall be expanded. No construction activities
shall be allowed within the exclusionary buffer until the qualified
biologist determines that the young have fledged, or the nest is
_no longer active. o

Prior to commencing

vegetation clearing

or ground-disturbing
activities

Mitigation MeasurE_BIO-z Desert Tortoise Shrvegs Prior to

ground disturbance or vegetation clearing within the Project site,
a CDFW-approved biologist shall conduct a protocol level
presence or absence survey within the Project area and a 500-
foot buffer of suitable habitat, no more than 48 hours prior to
Project activities and after any pause in Project activities lasting
30 days or more, in accordance with the most recent U.S. Fish
and Wildlife (USFWS) desert tortoise survey methodology. The
survey shall use perpendicular survey routes and 100-percent
visual coverage for desert tortoise and their sign. Preconstruction
| surveys cannot be combined with other surveys conducted for

Prior to commencing
vegetation clearing
or ground-disturbing
activities

Project
Proponent

Project
Proponent




DocuSign Envelope ID: 458DCD11-F12C-4F70-B000-0F4DD89D35F7

Cynthia Draper, Assistant Planner
Inyo County Planning Department
December 20, 2023

Page 9

other species while using the same personnel. Results of the
survey shall be submitted to CDFW prior to the start of Project
activities. If surveys confirm presence or desert tortoise is
observed during Operation and Maintenance and complete
avoidance cannot be achieved, the Applicant shall not undertake
Project activities and Project activities shall be postponed until
the appropriate authorization (i.e., a California Endangered
Species Act incidental take permit under the Fish and Game Code
section 2081) is obtained. If an ITP is obtained, the impact to
(desert tortoise shall be mitigated at a minimum of 1:1 ratio.




Planning Department

168 North Edwards Street Phone: (760) 878-0263
Post Office Drawer L FAX:  (760) 873-2712
Independence, California 93526 E-Mail: inyoplanning@inyocounty.us
AGENDA ITEM NO.: 7 (Action Item — Public Hearing)
PLANNING COMMISSION January 24, 2024
MEETING DATE:
SUBJECT: Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 2023-
01/BPCSD
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The applicant has applied for a CUP that would allow the applicant to construct a new
rapid infiltration basin as an extension to the existing Big Pine Wastewater Treatment
Facility. The existing wastewater treatment facility is approximately 10.3 acres and the
new rapid infiltration basin would add approximately 5 acres. The project site is located
on a parcel owned by Los Angeles Department of Water and Power (LADWP) which the
applicant is leasing a portion of for the existing wastewater treatment plant and the
proposed expansion. The location of the Project site and existing facility are located
adjacent to Highway 168 just east of the town of Big Pine at 6000 East Hwy. 168.

PROJECT INFORMATION.
Supcrvisory District: 4

Project Applicant: Big Pine Community Service District, 180 N. Main Street, Suite D,
Big Pine, CA 93513

Property Owner: City of Los Angeles - LADWP, 300 Manditch Street, Bishop, CA
93514-3449

Site Address: 6000 East Hwy. 168, Big Pine, CA 93513
Community: Big Pine

A.P.N.: 018-090-19

General Plan: Natural Resources (NR)

Zoning: Open Space — 40 (0S-40)



Size of Parcel: 304.15 acres — The Project site composes about 5 acres of the parcel.

Surrounding Land Use:

| Location: [Use: | Gen.PlanDesignation | Zoming
Site Vacant / LADWP Natural Resources (NR) | Open Space with a 40-acre
.\ |minimum(0S-40)
North Vacant / LADWP Natural Resources (NR) Open Space with a 40-acre
N o o _ minimum (0S-40)
East Vacant / LADWP Natural Resources (NR) | Open Space with a 40-acre
I B | | minimum (08-40)
South Developed Public Service Facility | Open Space with a 40-acre
| S S 2 N | minimum (0S-40)
West Vacant / LADWP Agriculture (A) Open Space with a 40-acre
_ | | minimum (OS-40)
Staff Recommended Action: 1.) Approve the Conditional Use Permit (CUP)
2023-01/BPCSD; and certify the project is a
Mitigated Negative Declaration under CEQA.
Alternatives: 1.) Deny the CUP.
2.) Approve the CUP with additional Conditions of
Approval.
3.) Continue the public hearing to a future date and
provide specific direction to staff regarding what
additional information and analysis is needed.
Project Planner: Danielle Visuafio, Associate Planner
STAFF ANALYSIS

Background and Overview

In 1972 the current Big Pine Wastewater Treatment Facility and the sewer collection
system were completed and went into operation. In 1982 the Big Pine Community
Services District (BPCSD) began operating and maintaining the wastewater facility under
a 10-year lease/purchase option with the Los Angeles Department of Water and Power.
BPCSD subsequently acquired ownership of the facility. The location of the Project site,
which is an extension of the existing wastewater treatment facility, is 6000 East Hwy 168
and is in a rural, undeveloped area surrounded by LADWP owned open grazing areas.

The applicant has applied for a CUP with the Inyo County Planning Department to
expand the existing Big Pine Wastewater Treatment Facility. The expansion will
increase the capability of the wastewater facility by adding a rapid infiltration basin at a
higher elevation in the expanded 5-acre lease area. The existing wastewater disposal

2




facility has proven insufficient in years when the groundwater is elevated in the area.
This occurred in 2017 and 2019 which were record snow and runoff years. This higher
elevation of the new rapid infiltration basin will provide the needed separation from the
groundwater, which will provide the proper treatment and hydraulic head to allow for
infiltration of the treated effluent into the groundwater when groundwater is elevated.
The additional basin will also allow for continued compliance with the waste discharge
requirements of BPCSD’s permit with the Lahontan Water Quality Control Board.

The Project site is on the floor of the Owens Valley, is highly disturbed, and slopes from
west to east towards the Owens River. The land surrounding the existing wastewater
treatment facility and the new requested expansion area are vacant. The closest residence
is about a half mile southwest from the Project site. The new rapid infiltration basin will
be surrounded by approximately 5 foot berms for containment. These berms will also
prevent view of the interior of the basin.

The Project would provide the same amount of treated effluent as the existing wastewater
treatment facility for infiltration and percolation into the groundwater. The BPCSD
provides wastewater services to 348 residences and 16 businesses in Big Pine. The
residences are mainly single-family homes with some small multifamily structures. The
businesses consist of restaurants, gas stations, motels, public laundry and markets.

General Plan Consistency

The goal of this Project is to allow for expansion of the existing wastewater treatment
facility to allow for needed separation from groundwater levels. The Project is consistent
with the General Plan designation of Natural Resources (NR) as it still provides for land
and water areas that are essentially unimproved and provides for the managed production
of resources (Policy LU-5.4). Furthermore, this Project is an expansion of an existing
Wwastewater treatment plant located in Public Service Facilities (PF) designation. The
Project is consistent with the General Plan designation of PF as it provides for areas
owned by public agencies such as local districts, that serve as significant public facilities
(Policy LU-5.2). The NR General Plan designation is also compatible with the existing
OS zoning designation.

Zoning Ordinance Consistency

The proposed Project is a CUP to allow for the extension of an existing wastewater
treatment facility. The Project site, Open Space (OS) zone, allows for public refuse
disposal with a CUP. The OS zone, within its purpose statement, states in part: “It is also
the intent of this chapter to preserve agricultural areas open space around the more
intensive urban areas of the county, while providing for compatible multiple use of
nonagricultural lands which are principally held by federal and other public agencies."
This wastewater treatment facility extension project will provide for a public service use
in nonagricultural lands, which is owned by LADWP, while still preserving the
agricultural open space since the surrounding area is still open to grazing as permitted by
LADWP,




ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

Staff prepared a Draft Mitigated Negative Declaration and Initial Study for CUP 2023-
01/BPCSD and circulated it for a 30-day review and comment period. The review period
closed on December 9, 2023. The Initial Study identified two potential impacts (Rufous
Hummingbird nesting and Hoary Bat roosting) under Biological Resources that will be
less than significant with mitigation and mitigations have been added under the
Conditions of Approval #4. No comments were received.

TRIBAL CONSULTATION

In compliance with AB 52, and Public Resource Code Section 21080.3.1(b), Tribes
identified as being local to Inyo County, were notified via a certified letter on May 8, 2023
about the project and the opportunity for consultation on this project. The Tribes notified
were as follows: the Twenty-Nine Palms Band of Mission Indians, the Big Pine Paiute
Tribe, the Bishop Paiute Tribe, Cabazon Band of the Mission Indians, the Fort
Independence Paiute Tribe, Lone Pine Paiute-Shoshone Tribe, the Timbisha Shoshone
Tribe, and the Torres Martinez Desert Cahuilla Indians.

In an email dated May 8, 2023, the Big Pine Paiute Tribe of the Owens Valley stated they
would be requesting formal consultation through a formal response. A formal response
was never received by Inyo County. However, there have been conversations outside of
tribal consultation. As a result of these conversations, the Project is being conditioned, in
Conditions of Approval #3, with the presence of a Tribal Monitor during the time of
grading and construction. The Tribe did not request further consultation.

NOTICING & REVIEW
The application for CUP 2023-01/BPCSD has been reviewed by the following County
departments: Public Works, Building and Safety, and Environmental Health.

Prior to the CEQA document publication, letters were sent to Caltrans, Big Pine Fire
Protection District, Lahotan Water Quality Control Board and the Great Basin Unified Air
Pollution Control District requesting feedback regarding the proposed Project. Public
review of the CEQA document was noticed in the Inyo Register on November 9, 2023 and
submitted to the CEQA Clearinghouse on November 8, 2023. Tribal notifications were
sent on May 8, 2023.

Prior to the CEQA document publication, the Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control
District provided comment that a secondary source permit would be required along with
the requirement that District Rule 401 be followed for dust control. However, subsequent
to the comments received, the applicant presented plans to the Great Basin Unified Air
Pollution Control District and was informed a secondary permit would not be required due
to the grading nature of the project. In consideration of the comments received from Great
Basin Unified Air Pollution Control District they have been incorporated into the
Conditions of Approval #5 for this CUP.



No other comments were received from any other agencies or departments.

The public hearing date for this Project was noticed on January 13, 2024 in the Inyo
Register. No mailings to property owners, as required by the Inyo County Code, was
necessary as there are no property owners within 300-feet of the Project location and the
LADWP is notified by default as they have given the BPCSD permission to conduct the
project on their land as part of a lease agreement.

RECOMMENDATION
Planning Department staff recommends the approval of Conditional Use Permit (CUP)
2023-01/BPCSD, with the following Findings and Conditions of Approval:

FINDINGS

1. The proposed CUP is a Mitigated Negative Declaration under CEQA guidelines
and the provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act have been
satisfied.
[Evidence: An Initial Study and Draft Negative Declaration of Environmental
Impact were prepared and circulated for public review and comment pursuant to
the provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act. The 30-day public
comment period ended on December 9, 2023 and no comments were received.
The Initial Study identified two potential impacts (Rufous Hummingbird nesting
and Hoary Bat roosting) under Biological Resources that will be less than
significant with mitigation. Mitigations are built into the Project as Conditions of
Approval #4.]

2. The proposed CUP is consistent with the Inyo County General Plan Land Use
designation of Natural Resources (NR).
[Evidence: The goal of this Project is to allow for the expansion of an existing
wastewater treatment facility in Big Pine, California. The Project is consistent
with the General Plan designation of NR as it still provides for land and water
areas that are essentially unimproved and provides for the managed production
of resources (Policy LU-5.4). Furthermore, this Project is an expansion of an
existing wastewater treatment plant located in the Public Service Facilities (PF)
designation. The Project is consistent with the General Plan designation of PF as
it provides for areas owned by public agencies such as local districts, that serve
as significant public facilities (Policy LU-5.2). The applicant is proposing the
Project to provide for treated wastewater effluent with use of the existing
wastewater treatment facility, a significant public facility, prior to percolation
into groundwater system.]

3. The proposed CUP is consistent with the Inyo County Zoning Ordinance, which
permits public refuse disposal, as a conditional use, in the Open Space (OS) zone.
[Evidence: The proposed Project is a CUP to allow for the extension of an
existing wastewater treatment facility. The OS zone allows for public refuse
disposal with a CUP. The OS zone, within its purpose statement, states in part:
“It is also the intent of this chapter to preserve agricultural areas open space
around the more intensive urban areas of the county, while providing for

5



compatible multiple use of nonagricultural lands which are principally held by
federal and other public agencies”. This wastewater treatment Jacility extension
project will provide for a public service use in nonagricultural lands which is
held by a LADWP while still preserving the agricultural open space since the
surrounding area is still open to grazing as permitted by LADWP.]

. The proposed CUP is necessary or desirable.

(Evidence: The General Plan’s Land Use Element’s Goal LU-5 states: “Provide
adequate public facilities and services for the existing and/or future needs of
communities and their surrounding environs, and to conserve natural and
manage resources.” The applicant is proposing to expand an existing wastewater
treatment facility to continue to process and dispose of treated effluent when
encountering high groundwater elevations near the wastewater treatment Jacility.
This activity is consistent with Goal LU-5 as the Project will provide the needed
expansion of a public facility/service for current and future needs of the Big Pine
community and the conservation of unaffected groundwater in the surrounding
environs. |

The proposed CUP is properly related to other uses and transportation and service
facilities in the vicinity.

{Evidence: The proposed CUP is for a public service type of use. The wastewater
treatment facility expansion would allow for continued wastewater effluent
treatment in a manner that prevents untreated effluent interaction with
groundwater. It is related to the rural, open space, nature of the area and will
not cause impacts on transportation or service Jacilities in the vicinity.]

The proposed CUP would not, under all the circumstances of this case, affect
adversely the health or safety of persons living or working in the vicinity or be
materially detrimental to the public welfare,

[Evidence: The proposed CUP is to allow for the expansion of a wastewater
treatment facility. This public service land use will not change or increase the
current level or general type of allowed uses in the Big Pine area. A security gate
is planned for the entrance on the north side of the Project site to prevent
unauthorized access. The Project is also required to comply with the Lahontan
Regional Water Quality Control Board regulations regarding waste handling
Jrom the facility operations. Therefore, it will not create impacts on the health or
safety of persons living or working in the vicinity or be materially detrimental to
the public welfare.]

Operating requirements necessitate the CUP for the site.

[Evidence: Public refuse dispose sites require a CUP per Inyo County Code
Section 18.12.040(H) and is therefore necessary Jor the operation of Big Pine
Wastewater Treatment Facility Expansion.]



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

1. Hold Harmless
The owner/developer shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless Inyo County
agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding against the
County or its agents, officers, or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul an
approval of the county, its advisory agencies, its appeals board, or legislative
body concerning CUP 2023-01/BPCSD. The County reserves the right to prepare
its own defense.

2. Compliance with County Code
The owner/developer shall conform to all applicable provisions of Inyo County
Code and State regulations, including the Lahotan Water Quality Control Board.
Failure to comply may result in the revocation of CUP 2023-01/BPCSD. If the
use provided by this CUP is not established within one year of the approval date it
will become void.

3. Cultural Resources
A Tribal Monitor is to be present during the time of construction and shall be
provided with safety briefings and equipment in order to remain safely onsite.
The Tribal Monitor shall be paid at a rate of $50 per hour.

4. Preconstruction Surveys

* The applicant shall complete a preconstruction survey to mitigate possible
impacts to the Rufous Hummingbird by either: implementing construction
outside the normal breeding season; or providing a pre-construction nesting
bird survey if construction takes place during the nesting season (typically
between January 1 through September 15 in the Owens Valley) and
construction cannot be avoided. If a pre-construction nesting bird survey is
required, it must be done prior to any grading or building activities for the
Project.

¢ The applicant shall complete a preconstruction survey for the potential
existence of any roosting Hoary Bats prior to removal of the one elm tree in
the Project site area.

5. Air
¢ The applicant shall consult with the Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control
District and obtain any permits determined to be necessary.

» The Project shall also follow District Rule 401 — Fugitive Dust and shall “take
reasonable precautions to prevent visible particulate matter from being
aitborne, under normal wind conditions, beyond the property from which the
emission originates.”



The Project shall establish dust mitigation measures for any land clearing and
grading that will apply to all Project construction periods involving the
construction of different areas of the Project site and any future construction
of the Project site.

Water is to be applied to disturbed surfaces at a sufficient frequency and
quantity for dust control purposes and all exposed soil surfaces shall be
moistened as required to avoid nuisance conditions and inconveniences for
local residents, businesses and travelers of nearby roadways.

All mobile and portable equipment shall comply with the requirements of the
State of California including all equipment being used during construction
having the appropriate registrations.

Lahontan Water Quality Control Board and Inyo County Environmental
Health Department: The owner/developer shall obtain all necessary permits
and water entitlements, and shall follow all necessary requirements per the
Lahonton Water Quality Control Board. The applicant shall consult the Inyo
County Environmental Health Department and the Lahonton Water Quality
Control Board and provide evidence of their approval to the planning
department prior to any groundbreaking and/or building activities to ensure
the any new monitoring wells are compliant with all State and County codes.

Attachments:

Vicinity Map
Site Plans



BRIy JUSWABEI ]

JJBMISEAN JURLIRG
E - .eh.f....rwﬂlfl
TERINE,

(dYIN ALINIDIA)
103rodd NOISNVdX3
ANV Id LNINLYINL Y3LVMILSYVM INId Oig



EXISTING TREATMENT FACILITY SITE PLAN
WITH EXPANSION AREA IDENTIFIED

|EXPANSION AREA

— —— - I v iAo
[ ‘i" o : . T BOvOH AR VAR i s R
E LR d . SuLe 1 o g e i e P el = B e e e P
- v o
'

[mn-m

EFFLUENT RAPD SN FLIRATION BASLY

EXISITING STE

Bog Pine CAD WWIF
000 MIWYILE Ag e CA

i




§ B
1 8
5

DTS o 9 <A1 E0AG HORGLY
. 4 e P e A . .
L F S | s vssies Chinire ;e o iy 3 R ] s s VI NOUYIONNS / ROUYNITIN: (500t
CE-= % o o e e e e
S B e o o
IWMm Bl el R e NSvE SHLND Shd T T nege oreovs 3901 19D A3YLS 13ATT d3LVM
zZz T ot ke e S L I R DR, P - 20C oy -
EE D s T s g Nor (B e\
i S —— ; ¥
SR E U] v e ey T i we T aieo 5 T B i 71 HWINOS - H1JON NOLLIS
LS sz T AOIYLBANISALS— IS Mo30 edrem | i FU0iTY LIS 4RO, 4T x J : e e
22E2% M e e e ap 4 ) . NI s £1 U o 3 e e e ————————— — =g5
Z xE - ., ] Ny — - P ——— gt 420
GHM_ ...n.&«.l.!lu!u.!l! 4 ot g S ! . - < = = K\ q NH
TR T aen gz e asen ey Lot BN BRI .;..h | - E " d e vn
z! | B i ey s, Ly ¢ S, MRIATTI WLy
In R T e i L Al R owrat HOUAILOWY \OreORT ST male
= W e 01 WOLLY 30 NG TIRS WwTss eyt Bl i san
2] 2 E 8 T papheie w ased wey [ T A e L C-FT ¢ !
fd e o v SPYW b W TS 39vD avis T v (1) = oS MoLvOmE (3)
= Lo
= NS
c INVULIIN NISVE A ._Su:u._m...ouuﬂuumn
7 " I | L m—— ER
= |
& _ s
z

ey Yo S o S S — ——

Do 3
i P ' Q3dWNd -NISVE NOLLV 100
m B } %gux(r | :
\ J i - / s—s—{s—s F—5—5—85—35—3
. //|t||.r\‘. sty — 1) (@] e | s (O A ¥
1

|
|

|
.uJ_ - 7 \|||.J \ y Aﬂ \\ L I " |
| k | | s __ |
S i |
2 [ NI 39N34 a1 | | I |
. T | B
= st Tt 1\
< :
A s_ e~ |l
AT_ll_ _ z| mz:ﬂ.au.l...\.l..:
I_ld..-mm_ T £l
! u_ gﬂﬁuaif{f}ft
- 4
= AL =—
Rl
i L
7 1

dh
NTS MIN Sl w ettt

e~ )

E
22

/ id / 3 Z

LT SOIVIE | } ) v ) A ‘A
ot B 1 o o | SN

| - Bos
. INNOHD OL
_ 7 Ovon 10 30m 01

4 5
7.3_. ¥3 - . 2

- T o 5
B U~ T e 5009
b WIDND 429 00s] WO T
1 mukauﬁ.wxm%mﬂ_ 1\ .h H 991 AMH
1 5 £ gy o ~ VB 13519 w1 _ o 1 | P )/1
! 8 T i | _
e _ OYes e 32e 01 M V
sreemy | / e
— ././ URDMI Tuvg ONIDVEIE Kiuvm
\.‘- T3 X0 3. 14 9 5veT i wE
4T NOuvaNy TN 4w Omuve ourrs m.._w‘ HOUYATT VA FONDE AU G. B9 M
wOvASN
0 591 ARM g31 ARKH

NVd 31IS V3¥V NOISNVJXI



Danielle Visuano

From: Luke Eisenhardt <leisenhardt@gbuapcd.org>
Sent: Thursday, April 6, 2023 2:01 PM

To: Danielle Visuano

Cc: Ann Logan; Tom Schaniel

Subject: Re: Contact information request

Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Flagged

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the Inyo Gounty Network. DO NOT click links or open attachments |
unless you recognize and trust the sender. Contact Information Services with questions or concerns.

You don't ofken get email from leisenhardt@gbuaped.org, | cam why this is irnporiant
Danielle,

GBUAPCD offers the following comments on the Big Pine Community Service District Wastewater Treatment
Plant Expansion Project:

Permits Needed: This project will require a secondary source permit from GBUAPCD. The responsible party

must apply for this permit before construction begins. The permit will have conditions to limit emissions from
dust and diesel engines during construction. In addition, if there will be any permanent sources installed which
will emit pollutants (such as a backup diesel engine or other combustion equipment) additional permits may be

needed.

Dust Control: This project will be required to follow District Rule 401 — Fugitive Dust and must “take
reasonable precautions to prevent visible particulate matter from being airborne, under normal wind conditions,
beyond the property from which the emission originates". The project should include dust mitigation measures
for any land clearing and grading, especially if there is an extended time between grading and earthwork and
when the solar array is installed. There have been projects in the past in our area that have allowed cleared
land to sit empty without any preventative measures that resulted in substantial dust cmissions, GBUAPCD
recommends minimizing the time between land clearing/grading and construction. GBUAPCD can provide a
Dust Control Plan if needed, especially if grading begins before a secondary source permit is issued.

California Requirements for Mobile/Portable Equipment: Mobile or portable equipment such as portable
engines, bulldozers, graders, construction equipment, etc. is subject to California rules beyond GBUAPCD
requirements. All equipment used durin g construction must have appropriate registrations and meet the
requirements of the State of California.

Thank you for reaching out to us at this stage in the project. We appreciate the opportunity to provide
comments. Please let us know if you have any questions.

Best,

Luke Eisenhardt

Air Quality Specialist

Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control District
157 Short Street

Bishop, California 93514



COUNTY OF INYO

PLANNING COMMISSION

MINUTES OF October 25, 2023 MEETING

COMMISSIONERS:

HOWARD LEHWALD FIRST DISTRICT Inyo County Planning Commission
CAITLIN (KATE) ]. MORLEY SECOND DISTRICT Post Office Drawer L
TODD VOGEL THIRD DISTRICT (CHAIR) Independence, CA 93526
CALLIE PEEK FOURTH DISTRICT (VICE) (760) 878-0263

SCOTT KEMP FIFTH DISTRICT (760) 872-0712 FAX
STAFF:

CATHREEN RICHARDS PLANNING DIRECTOR

CHRISTIAN MILOVICH ASSISTANT COUNTY COUNSEL

RYAN STANDRIDGE ASSOCIATE PLANNER

SALLY FAIRCLOTH PROJECT COORDINATOR

NATE GREENBERG COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR

MIKE ERRANTE PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

The Inyo County Planning Commission met in regular session on Wednesday, October 25, 2023. Commissioner Vogel opened the mecting at 10:02
a.m. These minutes are to be considered for approval by the Planning Commission at their next scheduled meeting.

ITEM 1:

ITEM 2:

ITEM 3:

ITEM 4:

MOTION:

County of Inyo

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - All recited the Pledge of Allegiance at 10:03 a.m.

ROLL CALL - Commissioners, Todd Vogel, Kate Morley, Callie Peek, and Howard Lehwald
were present.

Staff present: Cathreen Richards, Planning Director, Ryan Standridge, Associate Planner, Cynthia
Draper, Assistant Planner, and Christian Milovich, Assistant County Counsel.

Staff absent: Nate Greenberg, County Administrator; Michael Errante, Public
Works Director.

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD - This item provides the opportunity for the public to address
the Planning Commission on any planning subject that is not scheduled on the agenda.

Commissioner Vogel opened the Public Comment Period at 10:03 a.m.
No comments were made.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES (Action Item) — Approval of the Minutes from the August 23,
2023, meeting of the Planning Commission.

Commissioner Morley made the motion to approve the minutes. The motion was seconded by
Commissioner Peek.

The Motion passed 4-0-1 with commissioner Kemp absent.

Page 1 Planning Commission Minutes
October 25, 2023



ITEM 5:

County of Inyo

RENEWABLE ENERGY PERMIT-2022-01/BARKER - The applicant, Robbie Barker, has
applied for a Renewable Energy Permit located on one parcel (APN: 038-330-46), in Trona,
California. This permit would allow the applicant to construct a proposed 1.2 megawatt (MW)
photovoltaic solar facility that uses approximately 2,300 single axis tracker solar panels. The
project encompasses 5-acres of pre-disturbed land. This project is a Mitigated Negative
Declaration pursuant to CEQA.

Cynthia Draper, Assistant Planner, notified the Commissioners that a revision to the mitigation
and monitoring program was being submitted for Commissions review prior to presenting the staff
report. Once the revision was submitted for record, she presented the project.

Commissioner Morley acknowledged that the SCE Renewable Energy Program is not a county
run program but asked if the county had additional information.

Cynthia Draper, Assistant Planner answered that the county does not have much information and
stated that the program is an application process with Southern California Edison (SCE) and is
based on qualifications.

Commissioner Morley asked Cynthia to summarize the revisions to the mitigation monitoring
program.

Cynthia Draper, Assistant Planner stated that the revision was an expansion of the current
monitoring program that included fifteen additional mitigations pertaining to noise.

Commissioner Lehwald had concerns about who would be doing the monitoring and how the
conditions would be reported.

Cynthia Draper, Assistant planner clarified that the monitoring and reporting concerns were
specific to the noise. She also explained that policing would be the responsibility of the
neighboring parcels. They would need to contact the Planning Department or the Sheriff's
Department to report the disturbance. She explained that if the developer did not comply with the
conditions could lead to revocation of the permit.

Commissioner Morley requested clarification on the reporting requirements for dust.

Cynthia Draper, Assistant Planner stated that according to the mitigation and monitoring program,
the Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control District would be contacted directly for dust
mitigation issues.

Cathreen Richards, Director provided a follow-up statement explaining to the commissioners that
Great Basin is the regulatory and enforcement agency for dust control. However, the county would
also go out to verify the complaint because it is part of the condition of approval. Any violation to
the conditions of approval, are subject to possible revocation of the renewable energy permit.

Commissioner Lehwald had concerns about fire suppression at the site and wanted to confirm that
the county had done its due diligence.

Cynthia Draper, Assistant planner confirmed with the applicant that in addition to the San
Bernardino County fire department there was a volunteer fire department that would respond. She

Page 2 Planning Commission Minutes
October 25, 2023



County of Inyo

said that she informed the San Bernardino County fire department of the project, and no issue or
comments were received.

Commissioner Lehwald had concerns with setbacks based on comments received and asked for
clarification.

Cynthia Draper, Assistant Planner explained that there are residences within 400 feet of the project
site and that the project meets the required setbacks.

Commissioner Lehwald expressed concerns about the visual aspects of the project.

Cathreen Richards, Director explained that the visual resources were considered and addressed in
the CEQA document for the Renewal Energy General Plan Amendment. No mitigation was
required.

Public Comment- Commissioner Vogel opened the Public Hearing at 10:31 a.m.

Sean Hungerford, the attorney representing Robbie Barker explained that he came on board with
the project when CEQA questions arose. His firm submitted a written response to public comments
that was included in the staff report. He stated he was available to answer any questions after he
clarified the new noise mitigations. The source of the changes to the new mitigations came directly
out of the program EIR for the SEDA approved in 2015. The mitigations related to the construction
noise within 500 feet of a residence and other sensitive receptors were added to the monitoring
program.

Commissioner Vogel asked how long construction will take.

Sean Hungerford answered that it would take two weeks for trenching and grading and eight
weeks to do poles and paneling.

Commissioner Vogel asked what kind of noise the facility wiil emit post construction.

Sean Hungerford said no impact based off the REGPA baseline study. The inverters are centrally
located within the project and are not within the 500 feet of any structures.

Commissioner Peek asked how much traffic will impact the area once construction was finished.

Sean Hungerford, answered that once construction was complete not much traffic would occur
except for the occasional routine maintenance and checking for vandalism.

Robbie Barker of Valley Wide Construction commented that he was available to answer any
questions the Commissioner may have.

Commissioner Vogel asked Robbie Barker what type of hazardous or combustible materials are
on site after construction is complete.

Robbie Barker answered that there would be none. He went on to say that the only potential
hazard material would be the inverter but when built to specs and tests are passed it removes the
hazard. The solar array has an automatic monitoring system that also mitigates issues that arise.

Page 3 Planning Commission Minutes
October 25, 2023



County of Inyo

Commissioner Vogel asked Planning staff if the project could create a larger buffer between the
residences by moving the project west within the setback and closer to the existing Solar Array.

Cathreen Richards, Director explained that it could not be done without a setback variance.

Commissioner Lehwald asked if future expansion of solar arrays in this area is anticipated in the
future.

Robbie Barker of Valley Wide engineering stated that based on SCE existing infrastructure the
system may allow for two more.

Commissioner Peek asked if dust mitigation was used on his previous solar array project.

Robbie Barker answered that no dust mitigation was used, but it is now and this project will have
dust mitigation

Tom Ridder, property owner to the west of the solar project addressed the commissioners
explaining that his family has owned the property for sixty years and that the project parcels are
residential and not commercial and believes the solar should not be allowed. Mr. Ridder expressed
concern of how CEQA was completed and has concerns for dust mitigation during the upcoming
construction. Mr. Ridder had a fencing complaint, but it pertains to project 2022-02 and was tabled
until the following agenda item as they are different projects.

Commissioner Vogel asked Mr. Ridder if adding security screening would help eliminate some of
his visual concerns. Mr. Ridder Replied no, then the view would be of a fence.

Commissioner Lehwald initiated a discussion about Visual Resources based on concerns he
received prior to the hearing. Staff explained that visual resources were addressed in the program

Page 4 Planning Commission Minutes
October 25, 2023



MOTION:

ITEM 6:

County of Inyo

EIR and in the mitigated negative declaration documents. It was determined that no mitigation was
required.

Commissioner Vogel closed the Public Hearing at 10:57 a.m.
Commissioner Discussion- Commissioner Vogel opened the Commissioner Discussion

A brief discussion ensued to clarify which public comments pertained to 2022-01/Barker. One of
Commissioner Morley’s questions pertained to this project. A written comment alleges that the
applicant had graded in preparation for the solar installation.

Cathreen Richards, Director explained that staff does not work off supposition, once the permit
was received the planner went to the site and witnessed the parcel was devoid of vegetation.

Commissioner Vogel made a motion to approve renewable energy permit-2022-01/Barker as
presented by Cynthia Draper

Commissioner Peek seconded the motion.

The Motion passed 4-0-1 with commissioner Kemp absent.

RENEWABLE ENERGY PERMIT 2022-02/BARKER- The applicant, Robbie Barker, has
applied for a Renewable Energy Permit located on three parcels (038-330-32, 33, 34), in Trona
California. This permit would allow the applicant to construct a proposed 3 megawatt (MW)
photovoltaic solar facility that uses approximately 6,000 single axis tracker solar panels. The
project encompasses 15-acres of pre-disturbed land. This project is a Mitigated Negative
Declaration pursuant to CEQA.

Cynthia Draper, Assistant Planner gave the staff report.
Commissioner Morley inquired about Moses Lane jurisdiction with regard to public comment.

Cynthia Draper, Assistant Planner explained that it is on private property and is termed as a
prescriptive right of way. The prescriptive right of way is a civil matter between the two property
owners and does not pertain to the solar project being approved.

Christian Milovich, Assistant County counsel, assured the planning commissioners that the
prescriptive right of way is not under the purview of the planning commission and it is a civil
matter.

Public Comment- Commissioner Vogel opened the Public Hearing at 11:23 a.m.

Tom Ridder, property owner to the west of the solar project provided a brief statement that
reiterated his concerns mentioned in the previous project. Mr. Ritter expressed his disagreement
with the county's view of the prescriptive right of way as it will block access to his driveway. He
stated that the prescriptive right of way should be considered by the commission prior to issuance
of the permit. Mr. Ridder also disagreed with the staff’s analysis of the property during CEQA

Page 5 Planning Commission Minutes
October 25, 2023



MOTION:

review because he alleged that the applicant graded during the previously permitted solar project.
Mr. Ridder said that he believes that the SEDA, allowing commercial use in a residential zone will
affect future development and should be done on BLM land.

Sean Hungerford, attorney representing Robbie Barker of Valley Wide Engineering, reassured the
commissioners that the prescriptive right of way is a title issue that will be worked out, but it does
not require Planning Commission deliberation. He informed the Commission that he advised his
client not to talk about the right of way issue because it is a civil matter that has not been resolved.

Commissioner Lehwald asked if the applicant was aware of Mr. Kidder’s application to install the
mobile home. On the parcel next to the project.

Sean Hungerford, the attorney representing Robbie Barker of Valley Wide Engineering explained

to the Commissioners that Mr. Ritter has property rights and can build to standards governed by
Inyo County.

Commissioner Vogel made a motion to approve renewable energy permit 2022-02/Barker.
Commissioner Peck made the second.

The Motion passed 4-0-1 with commissioner Kemp absent.

COMMISSIONERS’ REPORT/COMMENTS

No comments were made.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Director Richards announced that Sally Faircloth was present and will be taking over as Planning
Commission Secretary. The Commissioners all welcomed her and congratulated her. Director
Richards went on to announce that a Special meeting will need to be held for an appeal for a
revocation of a hosted short-term rental. After a brief discussion about availability, it was
decided that the next scheduled meeting would be on November 15, 2023, at 10:00 a.m.

ADJOURNMENT

Prepared by:

Commissioner Vogel adjourned the meeting at 11:45 a.m.

Ryan Standridge
Planning Department

County of Inyo

Page 6 Planning Commission Minutes
October 25, 2023



COUNTY OF INYO

PLANNING COMMISSION
MINUTES OF November 15, 2023 MEETING

COMMISSIONERS:

HOWARD LEHWALD FIRST DISTRICT Inyo County Planning Commission
CAITLIN (KATE) J. MORLEY SECOND DISTRICT Post Office Drawer L
TODD VOGEL THIRD DISTRICT (CHAIR) Independence, CA 93526
CALLIE PEEK FOURTH DISTRICT (VICE) (760) 878-0263

SCOTT KEMP FIFTH DISTRICT (760) 872-0712 FAX
STAFF:

CATHREEN RICHARDS PLANNING DIRECTOR

CHRISTIAN MILOVICH ASSISTANT COUNTY COUNSEL

RYAN STANDRIDGE ASSOCIATE PLANNER

SALLY FAIRCLOTH PROJECT COORDINATOR

NATE GREENBERG COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR

MIKE ERRANTE PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

The Inyo County Planning Commission met in regular session on Wednesday, November 15, 2023. Commissioner Vogel opened the meeting at 10:07
a.m. These minutes are to be considered for approval by the Planning Commission at their next scheduled meeting.

ITEM 1:

ITEM 2:

ITEM 3:

ITEM 4:

County of Inyo

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - All recited the Pledge of Allegiance at 10:08 a.m.

ROLL CALL - Commissioners, Todd Vogel, Kate Morley, Callie Peek, Scott Kemp, and
Howard Lehwald were present.

Staff present: Cathreen Richards, Planning Director, Ryan Standridge, Associate Planner, Danielle
Visuano, Associate Planner, Cynthia Draper, Assistant Planner, Sally Faircloth, Project
Coordinator, Grace Weitz, Assistant County Counsel, and Christian Milovich, Assistant County
Counsel.

Staff absent: Nate Greenberg, County Administrator; Michael Errante, Public
Works Director.

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD - This item provides the opportunity for the public to address
the Planning Commission on any planning subject that is not scheduled on the agenda.

Chair Vogel opened and closed the Public Comment Period at 10:09 a.m.
No comments were made.

ACTION ITEM & PUBLIC HEARING: Appeal 2023-01 Revocation of Hosted Short-term
Rental Permit 2021-06/Collins.

The appellant has submitted an appeal of the Planning Directors decision to revoke Short-term
Rental Permit #2021-06/Collins. This decision is being appealed to the Planning Commission, per
ICC Section 18.73.070. Staff recommends denial of the appeal.

This action is Exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) by 15321 -
Enforcement Actions by Regulatory Agencies.

Page 1 Planning Commission Minutes
November 15, 2023



MOTION:

Chair Vogel gave a brief summation of the appeal process and asked Planning staff and those
present for the hearing to introduce themselves.

Grace Weitz, Assistant County Counsel for the Planning Department, handed out documents
provided by Mr. Schuster, for the Commissioners to review.

Sally Faircloth, Planning Commission Secretary, swore in all parties related to the hearing.

Grace Weitz, Assistant County Counsel for the Planning Department, presented the case defending
the Planning Department’s decision to revoke Short-term Rental Permit #2021-06/Collins.

Mr. Schuster made statements promoting his case as to why the permit should not be revoked.

The Commissioner’s asked for clarification on Short Term rental rules and regulations as well as
information regarding Mrs. Collin’s violations.

Chair Vogel closed the public hearing and opened discussion with the Commissioners at 10:46 am
Commissioner Kemp made a motion to uphold the revocation of Hosted Short-term Rental Permit
2021-06/Collins. Chair Vogel seconded the motion.

The Motion passed 4-1 at 10:54 a.m.

COMMISSIONERS’ REPORT/COMMENTS

Commissioner Lehwald and Chair Vogel asked questions regarding the short-term rental
moratorium. Christian Milovich, Assistant County Counsel, stated the moratorium is at the
discretion of the Board of Supervisors.

Cathreen Richards, Planning Director, stated the next Planning Commission meeting will be held
on January 24, 2024.

ADJOURNMENT

Prepared by:
Sally Faircloth

Chair Vogel adjourned the meeting at 10:56 a.m.

Planning Department

County of Inyo

Page 2 Planning Commission Minutes
November 15, 2023



